
Board of Directors 
Meeting Agenda

Meeting Time: 
4:00 pm

Location:
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority Boardroom

801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch

Wednesday, December 11, 2024

CITY OF ANTIOCH
Lamar Thorpe, Chair
Monica Wilson

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

CITY OF BRENTWOOD
Joel Bryant
Tony Oerlemans

CITY OF OAKLEY
Shannon Shaw
Anissa Williams

CITY OF PITTSBURG
Dionne Adams
Shanelle Scales-Preston

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY
Diane Burgis
Federal Glover, Vice-Chair

MEMBER-AT-LARGE
Merl Craft



Public comments can be submitted via e-mail to CEO@trideltatransit.org. 
Comments received one hour prior to the meeting will be distributed to the members of the Board
of Directors and summarized in the minutes.
Persons requesting to address the ECCTA Board of Directors in person are requested to complete a
Comment Request form and submit it to the clerk. If possible, please submit the form prior to the
start of the meeting. At the appropriate time, the ECCTA chair will call on individuals to comment.
During the public comment agenda item, the public is permitted to address the ECCTA Board of
Directors on items that are on the consent calendar or items not on the agenda. Individuals may
also make a request for future agenda items. No action or discussion may take place on any item
not appearing on the posted agenda. 
If a person wishes to speak on a specific agenda item, the ECCTA chair will call on the individual
when the agenda item is being discussed by the Board of Directors.
Persons addressing the ECCTA Board of Directors are requested to limit their remarks to three (3)
minutes unless an extension of time is granted by the chair, subject to approval of the ECCTA Board
of Directors.

PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES:

AGENDA, STAFF REPORT, AND DOCUMENT AVAILABILITY:

Copies of all staff reports and documents subject to disclosure that relate to each item of business
referred to on the agenda are available for public inspection the Friday before each regularly scheduled
Board of Director's meeting at ECCTA's front desk located at 801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, California.  Any
documents subject to disclosure that are provided to all, or a majority of all, of the members of the
Board regarding any item on this agenda after the agenda has been distributed will also be made
available for inspection at ECCTA's front desk at the above referenced address during regular business
hours.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the meeting room is wheelchair accessible and
disabled parking is available in the ECCTA parking lot. If you are a person with a disability and you need
disability-related modifications or accommodations to participate in this meeting, please contact the
CEO’s Office at (925) 754-6622 or fax (925) 757-2530. Notification no fewer than 48 hours prior to the
meeting will enable Tri Delta Transit to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this
meeting. {28 CFR 35.102-35, 104 ADA Title II} Please help us accommodate individuals with EI-MSC and
refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting. Please turn off any electronic paging device or
cell phone.

Any person with Limited English Proficiency (LEP) who requires language assistance to communicate
with the Tri Delta Transit Board of Directors during the meeting should contact the CEO’s Office at (925)
754-6622 or fax (925) 757-2530. Notification no fewer than 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable Tri
Delta Transit to make reasonable arrangements to assure language assistance for this meeting.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) INFORMATION:

LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY (LEP):

The Board of Directors may take action on any item on the agenda, which action may consist of the
recommended action, no action or a related action.

ANTICIPATED ACTION BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 



Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday December 11, 2024 

Available Online: https://trideltatransit.com/board.aspx 

1. CALL TO ORDER Chair Diane Burgis
a. Roll Call

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. PUBLIC COMMENT
While public comments are encouraged and taken very seriously, State law prevents the
Board of Directors from discussing items that are not on the meeting agenda. If appropriate,
staff will follow up on public comments. Please see Public Comment Guidelines on the last
page of this agenda.

4. CHAIR’S REPORT Chair Diane Burgis

5. CONSENT CALENDAR (ACTION ITEM):
(see attachment: tab #1)

a. Minutes of the Board of Directors meeting of October 23, 2024
b. Financial Report
c. Marketing and Customer Service Activities Report

     Requested Action: Approve items 5a, 5b, and 5c 

6. CEO’S REPORT Rashidi Barnes
(see attachment: tab #2) 

7. ACTION and DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. ACTION ITEM: Revised DBE Triennial Goal for FFY 2023-2025

(see attachment: tab #3) 
Requested Action: Approve Resolution #241211A accepting ECCTA’s revised 
DBE triennial goal of one percent (1%) for FTA-assisted contracts for FFY 2023-
2025 and authorizing staff to submit the goal to the FTA 

https://trideltatransit.com/board.aspx


Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday December 11, 2024 

Available Online: https://trideltatransit.com/board.aspx 
 
 

 

 

b. ACTION ITEM: 2025 ECCTA Board of Directors Calendar  
(see attachment: tab #4) 

   Requested Action: Combine the November and December 2025 board  
   meetings and conduct that meeting on December 10, 2025. 
 
 

   c.      ACTION ITEM: Permanent One Seat Ride Program Memorandum of    
        Understanding 

(see attachment: tab #5) 
   Requested Action: Approve Resolution #241211C authorizing the CEO to  
   enter into an MOU with County Connection, LAVTA, and WestCAT to    
   formalize the One-Seat Ride program. 
 
 
8. BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS 

Under this item, Directors are limited to providing information, asking clarifying questions 
about matters not on the agenda, responding to public comment, referring matters to staff, 
or requesting a report be made at another meeting. 
 

 
 

9. ADJOURN 
Next Meeting: January 22, 2025, at 4:00 p.m., 801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509. 

https://trideltatransit.com/board.aspx


 

TAB 1 
Agenda Item #5 

Consent Calendar (ACTION ITEM): Minutes, Financial Report and  
Marketing Activities Report  

 

 
 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Wednesday December 11, 2024 

ECCTA Boardroom 
801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509 

   



EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY  
Antioch - Brentwood - Pittsburg - Oakley and Contra Costa County 

MINUTES 

October 23, 2024 

The Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority (ECCTA) meeting was called to order in the 
ECCTA Board Room, 801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, California by Chair Burgis at 4:00 P.M. 

ROLL CALL / CALL TO ORDER 

BOARD MEMBERS 

PRESENT: Dionne Adams (Pittsburg)*; Diane Burgis (Contra Costa County/Chair); 
Federal Glover (Contra Costa County); Lamar Hernandez-Thorpe*; Shanelle 
Scales-Preston(Pittsburg); Shannon Shaw (Oakley); Anissa Williams 
(Oakley); Monica Wilson (Antioch) 
*arrived after roll call*

ABSENT: Merl Craft (Member-at-Large); Joel Bryant (Brentwood); Tony Oerlemans 
(Brentwood) 

STAFF PRESENT:  Rashidi Barnes, Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
Toan Tran, Chief Operating Officer (COO)  

   Angeline Loeffler, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 
Eli Flushman, General Counsel  

   Agustin Diaz, Manager of Planning and Grants  
   Uriel Diaz, Special Projects Analyst  

Rosanna Dominguez, Executive Assistant 
   Tania Babcock, Compliance Manager 
   Leeann Lorono, Manager of Customer Service and Marketing 
   Sam Tolley, Director of Maintenance   

Owi Akpan, Marketing Intern  
Alicia Martinez, Customer Service Representative  

   Irene Schaefer, Receptionist 

OTHERS 
PRESENT:    Myeisha Williams, General Manager 

   Renato Cruz, Assistant General Manager 
  Ben Trejo, Transdev Safety Manager 
   Bernard Chan, Transdev Hiring/Training Manager 
   Debra Steidle, Paratransit Coordinator  

Lori Sprinkle, Transdev Office Manager 
   Linda Thompson, Operator for Transdev 

Ashley Greene, Auditor for Brown Armstrong  
  Thomas Wittmann, Consultant Nelson/Nygaard  



       
  
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Director Glover led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
No public comment  
 
 
 
CHAIR’S REPORT 
 
Chair Burgis requested that an alternative to the board holiday dinner be found in light of the agency's 
fiscal constraints this year. The discussion was had around the advantages of having it vs. not having 
it. Feedback provided will determine the direction Rashidi Barnes, Chief Executive Officer takes in 
regards to a holiday event.  
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
On motion by Director Glover, seconded by Director Williams, ECCTA Board members adopted 
the Consent Calendar below, which was carried by the following vote: 
 
A. Minutes of the Board of Directors meeting of September 25, 2024 
B. Financial Report 
C. Marketing and Customer Service Activities Report 
 
AYES: Burgis, Glover, Hernandez-Thorpe, Scales-Preston, Shaw, Williams, Wilson 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Bryant, Craft, Oerlemans, Adams 
 
 
 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
A.  Operations Report 

 
Chief Executive Officer Rashidi Barnes reviewed new scenarios regarding a legislative measure that 
was discussed in a meeting with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) recently. These 
scenarios have been presented to MTC’s legislative committee before going forward. Scenario one is 
a 30-year four-county measure based on a $.05 sales tax. This includes revenue for operations as well 
as county flex funds. The other measure is a 10-year scenario, the focus of this measure is more 
towards Caltrans and AC transit over a shorter period of time. A hybrid framework has also been 
requested to explore a measure that includes all nine counties.  



 
Mr. Barnes acknowledged Ms. Linda Thompson for her 40-year service anniversary as an operator 
with Tri Delta Transit. Her record maintains with perfect attendance and no accidents.  
 
 
 
ACTION ITEM AND DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
 
A. Clipper MOU Renewal  
 
Manager of Customer Service and Marketing Leeann Lorono presented the MTC background 
around the contract that MTC had with Cubic for the Clipper payment systems. Since its initiation, 
the contract has had multiple amendments, including extensions. Most recently, the contract will be 
updated to reflect Clipper fare payment systems and extended to 2025. The Memo of Understanding 
(MOU) amendment will update current cost sharing and reflect the O&M term extension. This has 
been approved by the Clipper board, and MTC will issue a DocuSign to the Eastern Contra Costa 
Transit Authority.  
 
On motion by Director Adams, seconded by Director Williams, approved resolution #241023A 
authorizing the Chief Executive Officer to renew the 2022 amended Clipper Memo of 
Understanding with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission to allow for the continued use 
of Clipper 1 through June 20, 2026, which was carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Adams, Burgis, Glover, Hernandez-Thorpe, Scales-Preston, Shaw, Williams, 

Wilson 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Bryant, Craft, Oerlemans 
 
 
B. Independent Auditors Report  
 
Chief Financial Officer Angeline Loeffler and Ashley Greene, Auditor from Brown Armstrong CPAs, 
presented the findings from the annual fiscal audit conducted on June 30, 2024. Ms. Greene reviewed 
the standards and reports that were created as a result of the audit. The auditors found no deficiency 
in internal control that they consider to be a material weakness.  
 
On motion by Director Glover, seconded by Director Adams, approved resolution #241023B 
accepting the Independent Auditors report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024, which was 
carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Adams, Burgis, Glover, Hernandez-Thorpe, Scales-Preston, Shaw, Williams, 

Wilson 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Bryant, Craft, Oerlemans 
 
 
 
 



C. Comprehensive Operational Analysis  
 
Chief Operational Officer Toan Tran presented an update on the progress of the comprehensive 
operational analysis, sharing some key highlights. Thomas Wittmann from Nelson/Nygaard 
presented all of the different ways that the project team has reached out to the community for 
feedback.  
  Two alternatives were presented that will move forward to the next step. Funding levels 
were also considered to have a scalable outlook. It was expressed that ECCTA ensures it reaches 
out to all service areas for feedback, including people who don’t normally ride public 
transportation. It was requested that ECCTA review alternatives to fixed route such as Tri MyRide.  
 
 This was a discussion-only item; no action was needed at this time.  
 
 
D. 2024 Agency Safety Plan      
 
Compliance Manager Tania Babcock presented the Agency Safety Plan. The plan needed an update 
to incorporate a safety management system per new regulations from the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA). The FTA amended the Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan (PTASP) 
regulation. The safety plan was approved by the safety committee and then taken to the board for 
approval. Ms. Babcock reviewed the four components of the safety management system.  
Ms. Babcock reviewed the new safety performance targets that the agency must meet and the safety 
risk reduction performance targets that also must be met. These goals are to keep the public and our 
agency safe.  
 
On motion by Director Shaw, seconded by Director Hernandez-Thorpe, approve resolution 
#241023D approving Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority’s 2024 Public Transportation 
Agency Safety Plan, which was carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Adams, Burgis, Glover, Hernandez-Thorpe, Scales-Preston, Shaw, Williams, 

Wilson 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Bryant, Craft, Oerlemans 
 
 
E. Board of Directors Member-At-Large Appointment 
 
Executive Assistant Rosanna Dominguez presented the appointment for a member-at-large. The 
current member-at-large is nearing the end of the term (2-years). The board can choose to 
reinstate the current member-at-large or open up the position for candidates.  
 
On motion by Hernandez-Thorpe, seconded by Director Scales-Preston, the board chose to 
reinstate Director Merl Craft as the member-at-large for two more years., which was carried by 
the following vote: 
 
AYES: Adams, Burgis, Glover, Hernandez-Thorpe, Scales-Preston, Shaw, Williams, 

Wilson 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Bryant, Craft, Oerlemans 
 



 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMENT 
 
The following Board of Directors commented: 
Director Williams 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting of the Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority adjourned at 5:25 p.m. until December 
11, 2024, at 4:00 p.m. in the ECCTA Administrative Facility, 801 Wilbur Ave Antioch, California.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Rosanna Dominguez 
 
Executive Assistant  
 

 
 

 



TR
I D

EL
TA

 T
R

AN
SI

T
In

co
m

e 
St

at
em

en
t -

  C
om

pa
ris

on
 to

 A
nn

ua
l B

ud
ge

t
As

 o
f O

ct
ob

er
 3

1,
 2

02
4

(u
na
ud
ite
d)

EC
C
TA

FR
D
R

EC
C
TA

FR
D
R

EC
C
TA

FR
D
R

O
P
ER

A
TI
N
G
 R
EV

EN
U
ES

P
as
se
n
ge
r 
Fa
re
s

7
8
4
,0
1
6

$
   
   
   
   

5
1
6
,5
9
6

$
   
   
   
   

2
6
7
,4
2
0

$
   
   
   
   

1
,9
8
6
,4
6
5

$
   
   
  

1
,0
1
3
,0
9
7

$
   
   
  

9
7
3
,3
6
8

$
   
   
   
   

3
9
%

5
1
%

2
7
%

O
th
er
 In
co
m
e

2
2
5
,8
4
1

$
   
   
   
   

1
2
7
,8
8
9

$
   
   
   
   

9
7
,9
5
2

$
   
   
   
   
  

5
2
9
,1
1
5

$
   
   
   
   

1
2
0
,0
0
0

$
   
   
   
   

4
0
9
,1
1
5

$
   
   
   
   

4
3
%

1
0
7
%

2
4
%

To
ta
l O

pe
ra
tin

g 
Re

ve
nu

es
:

1
,0
0
9
,8
5
7

$
   
   
  

6
4
4
,4
8
5

$
   
   
   
   

3
6
5
,3
7
2

$
   
   
   
   

2
,5
1
5
,5
8
0

$
   
   
  

1
,1
3
3
,0
9
7

$
   
   
  

1
,3
8
2
,4
8
3

$
   
   
  

4
0
%

5
7
%

2
6
%

N
O
N
‐O
P
ER

A
TI
N
G
 R
EV

EN
U
ES

Fe
d
er
al
 F
u
n
d
s

1
,9
7
9
,1
1
2

$
   
   
  

1
5
5
,1
3
8

$
   
   
   
   

1
,8
2
3
,9
7
4

$
   
   
  

2
,0
8
9
,5
8
2

$
   
   
  

2
5
4
,8
2
7

$
   
   
   
   

1
,8
3
4
,7
5
5

$
   
   
  

9
5
%

6
1
%

9
9
%

St
at
e 
Fu
n
d
s

7
,4
7
9
,5
3
8

$
   
   
  

6
,4
1
0
,7
3
1

$
   
   
  

1
,0
6
8
,8
0
7

$
   
   
  

2
4
,1
8
8
,1
3
8

$
   
   

1
8
,2
3
2
,1
6
9

$
   
   

5
,9
5
5
,9
6
9

$
   
   
  

3
1
%

3
5
%

1
8
%

Lo
ca
l F
u
n
d
s

8
0
0
,0
0
0

$
   
   
   
   

6
5
6
,0
0
0

$
   
   
   
   

1
4
4
,0
0
0

$
   
   
   
   

3
,9
5
8
,1
4
0

$
   
   
  

2
,3
9
8
,4
4
9

$
   
   
  

1
,5
5
9
,6
9
1

$
   
   
  

2
0
%

2
7
%

9
%

In
te
r‐
O
p
er
at
o
r 
A
gr
ee
m
en

ts
 (
B
ar
t 
Fe
ed

er
)

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

2
,6
6
5
,8
5
1

$
   
   
  

2
,6
6
5
,8
5
1

$
   
   
  

‐
$
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

n
/a

In
te
re
st
 &
 O
th
er
 M

is
c 
In
co
m
e

4
3
,2
3
0

$
   
   
   
   
  

3
5
,7
5
0

$
   
   
   
   
  

7
,4
8
0

$
   
   
   
   
   
 

5
0
,0
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
  

4
0
,0
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
  

1
0
,0
0
0

$
   
   
   
   
  

8
6
%

8
9
%

7
5
%

To
ta
l N

on
‐o
pe
ra
tin

g 
Re

ve
nu

es
:

1
0
,3
0
1
,8
8
0

$
   
   

7
,2
5
7
,6
1
9

$
   
   
  

3
,0
4
4
,2
6
1

$
   
   
  

3
2
,9
5
1
,7
1
1

$
   
   

2
3
,5
9
1
,2
9
6

$
   
   

9
,3
6
0
,4
1
5

$
   
   
  

3
1
%

3
1
%

3
3
%

To
ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s:

1
1
,3
1
1
,7
3
7

$
   
   

7
,9
0
2
,1
0
4

$
   
   
  

3
,4
0
9
,6
3
3

$
   
   
  

3
5
,4
6
7
,2
9
1

$
   
   

2
4
,7
2
4
,3
9
3

$
   
   

1
0
,7
4
2
,8
9
8

$
   
   

O
P
ER

A
TI
N
G
 E
X
P
EN

SE
S

P
u
rc
h
as
ed

 T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
at
io
n

7
,0
3
0
,8
7
6

$
   
   
  

4
,4
5
1
,1
7
8

$
   
   
  

2
,5
7
9
,6
9
8

$
   
   
  

2
1
,1
8
7
,2
9
0

$
   
   

1
3
,6
1
3
,7
5
2

$
   
   

7
,5
7
3
,5
3
8

$
   
   
  

3
3
%

3
3
%

3
4
%

M
at
er
ia
ls
 a
n
d
 S
u
p
p
lie
s

1
,4
6
3
,5
1
4

$
   
   
  

1
,1
8
6
,3
5
8

$
   
   
  

2
7
7
,1
5
6

$
   
   
   
   

5
,2
9
4
,3
0
7

$
   
   
  

4
,2
6
1
,1
3
5

$
   
   
  

1
,0
3
3
,1
7
2

$
   
   
  

2
8
%

2
8
%

2
7
%

Sa
la
ri
es
 &
 B
en

ef
it
s

1
,9
3
5
,7
1
3

$
   
   
  

1
,5
5
7
,4
3
2

$
   
   
  

3
7
8
,2
8
1

$
   
   
   
   

6
,4
0
8
,5
8
9

$
   
   
  

5
,6
3
9
,5
6
6

$
   
   
  

7
6
9
,0
2
3

$
   
   
   
   

3
0
%

2
8
%

4
9
%

Se
rv
ic
es

5
6
4
,7
9
1

$
   
   
   
   

3
6
2
,0
2
0

$
   
   
   
   

2
0
2
,7
7
1

$
   
   
   
   

1
,3
7
2
,1
0
2

$
   
   
  

1
,0
0
2
,5
8
5

$
   
   
  

3
6
9
,5
1
7

$
   
   
   
   

4
1
%

3
6
%

5
5
%

C
as
u
al
ty
 a
n
d
 li
ab

ili
ty
 in
su
ra
n
ce

1
7
2
,5
7
3

$
   
   
   
   

1
4
2
,5
5
8

$
   
   
   
   

3
0
,0
1
5

$
   
   
   
   
  

4
7
8
,4
9
3

$
   
   
   
   

3
8
4
,0
8
0

$
   
   
   
   

9
4
,4
1
3

$
   
   
   
   
  

3
6
%

3
7
%

3
2
%

U
ti
lit
ie
s

9
3
,4
9
4

$
   
   
   
   
  

7
6
,6
0
7

$
   
   
   
   
  

1
6
,8
8
7

$
   
   
   
   
  

3
3
3
,8
4
6

$
   
   
   
   

2
8
4
,7
1
9

$
   
   
   
   

4
9
,1
2
7

$
   
   
   
   
  

2
8
%

2
7
%

3
4
%

O
th
er
 (
 D
u
es
, T
ra
ve
l, 
Ta
xe
s,
 a
n
d
 O
th
er
)

2
0
3
,2
7
4

$
   
   
   
   

1
2
7
,7
7
6

$
   
   
   
   

7
5
,4
9
8

$
   
   
   
   
  

3
9
2
,6
6
4

$
   
   
   
   

3
3
6
,9
2
1

$
   
   
   
   

5
5
,7
4
3

$
   
   
   
   
  

5
2
%

3
8
%

1
3
5
%

To
ta
l O

pe
ra
tin

g 
Ex
pe

ns
es
:

1
1
,4
6
4
,2
3
5

$
   
   

7
,9
0
3
,9
2
9

$
   
   
  

3
,5
6
0
,3
0
6

$
   
   
  

3
5
,4
6
7
,2
9
1

$
   
   

2
5
,5
2
2
,7
5
9

$
   
   

9
,9
4
4
,5
3
2

$
   
   
  

3
2
%

3
1
%

3
6
%

EX
C
ES
S 
R
EV

/(
EX

P
)

(1
5
2
,4
9
8
)

$
   
   
   
 

(1
,8
2
6
)

$
   
   
   
   
   

(1
5
0
,6
7
3
)

$
   
   
   
 

n
/a

n
/a

n
/a

FY
 2
5
  Y
TD

 A
ct
u
al
 

FY
2
5
 A
d
o
p
te
d
 B
u
d
ge
t 

Y
TD

 %
 o
f 
FY

 2
5
 B
u
d
ge
t



Agenda Item #5c 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
December 11, 2024 

 
 
 

 

Staff Report to ECCTA Board of Directors 
Meeting Date: December 11, 2024 

Agenda Item: Marketing/Communications Activities – Agenda Item #5c 

Lead Staff: Leeann Loroño, Manager of Customer Service and Marketing 

Approved: Rashidi Barnes, Chief Executive Officer 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Tri Delta Transit strives to provide top notch service to our customers and the community, as 
well as communicate the pivotal role Tri Delta Transit plays.  Here are some projects Marketing 
has been working on. 
 
 
  

 
  

November & December Marketing 
Campaigns  
 
Marketing is continuing to support the Revitalize Tri 
Delta Transit project with additional on-bus outreach, 
as well as assistance at outreach events. Email 
campaigns, social media and outreach was done for the 
in-person meeting at LMC Pittsburg on December 3rd.   
 

 
   

 
 

 

Honoring our Veterans  
 
Delta Veterans Group and the Antioch Rivertown 
Veterans Lion’s Club came to the November in-service 
to once again honor the Veterans among us.  After a 
beautiful ceremony, everyone was treated to either 
breakfast or lunch.  We are honored and privileged to 
have these two amazing organizations with us each 
year.   
   

   TRI DELTA TRANSIT 



Agenda Item #5c 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
December 11, 2024 

 
 
 

 

Ongoing Projects:   
       

  
 

 
 

 
 

Transit Takes You Places 
 
Riders are encouraged to take public transportation to 
get to and from events safely. Riders could take transit 
to the following events (some not shown here):  
 

• Makers Boulevard at Oakley Mobility Hub 
 

• Antioch, Brentwood, Oakley, and Pittsburg 
Veterans City Celebrations  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

   
 
  

General Messages and National 
Campaigns 
 
Tri Delta Transit posted the following public service, 
National Awareness Campaigns, and general messages 
on social media (not all shown).  
 

• Veterans Day Weekend/Holiday Service  
• Thanksgiving  
• Thanksgiving Weekend/Holiday service  

 



Agenda Item #5c 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
December 11, 2024 

 
 
 

 

   

  
 

 
 
 

Collaborations and Information  
 
Transportation is essential and connects communities, 
so Tri Delta Transit does as much as we can to spread 
information, collaborate with other agencies and 
organizations, and enhance customer experience.  
 
Here are some examples of our recent collaborations:  
 

• Congressman DeSaulnier’s Veterans Town Hall 
and Resource Fair  
 

• 511 Contra Costa Buy One Get One Free 
campaign for 20 ride passes 
 

• Transit Safety Tips for bad daylight savings early 
darkness  

 
  



Agenda Item #5c 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
December 11, 2024 

SOCIAL MEDIA ANALYTICS 
Following please find a brief summary of metrics for the Tri Delta Transit social media accounts.  

MAIN ACCOUNTS MONTHS 
Followers SEPTEMBER NOVEMBER 

to date 
Facebook 1.3k 1.3k 
Instagram 1,047 1,051 
X (Twitter) 1,066 1,066 
LinkedIn 621 631 

ALERT ACCOUNTS MONTHS 
Followers SEPTEMBER NOVEMBER to 

date 
Facebook 66 67 
Instagram 85 85 
X (Twitter)  25 25 

• Tri Delta Transit is exploring the use of Bluesky in place of X. Bluesky is similar to X/Twitter
in how it works. According to the APTA Marketing and Communication Forum, transit
agencies are trying this platform in place of X/Twitter.

Please let us know if you have any questions or need further information about any of
these materials.



TAB 2 
Agenda Item #6 

ACTION ITEM: CEO Report  

Board of Directors Meeting 
Wednesday December 11, 2024 

ECCTA Boardroom 
801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509



AGENCY NAME

All

Fixed Route MedVan MOD
Paratransit TMR

517517
4,3064,306

10,22610,226

9,7549,754126,545

101,742

Total Riders:

-2.09%
vs. Prior Year

On Time Early Late

0.6%0.6%

18.6%18.6%

On Time:

M
ay

/F
Y2

02
4

Ju
n/

FY
20

24

Ju
l/F

Y2
02

5

Aug
/F

Y2
02

5

Se
p/

FY
20

25

Oct/
FY

20
25

Demand Response
Fixed Route

0.00%

6.00%

12.00%

Non-Preventable Preventable

This Year Last Year

0.00

0.40

0.80

1.20

0.970.97

1.161.16

0.650.65

0.870.87

Fix
ed

 Ro
ut

e

M
ed

Va
n

M
OD

One
 Se

at

Pa
rat

ran
sit

TM
R

This Year Last Year

0.0

2.5

5.0

7.5

10.0

8.48.4

8.08.0

2.02.0
1.81.8

4.14.1
3.93.9

2.92.9 2.82.8
2.52.5

5.45.4
5.75.7

Performance Summary

Ridership

On Time Performance

Accidents / 100K Miles

Cost Recovery Ratio

Passengers Per Revenue Hour

80.9%

Oct/FY2025

Month - Fiscal Year

Overview 12/02/2024

Page 1/5



Values -1 -25.29%

YTD 2024

YTD 2025

3

2

0.87

0.65

Accidents Per 100,000 Miles

May/FY2024

Jun/FY2024

Jul/FY2025

Aug/FY2025

Sep/FY2025

Oct/FY2025

5

2

4

3

5

2

1.53

0.66

0.82

0.91

1.73

0.65

Apr
/F

Y2
02

4

M
ay

/F
Y2

02
4

Ju
n/

FY
20

24

Ju
l/F

Y2
02

5

Aug
/F

Y2
02

5

Se
p/

FY
20

25

Oct/
FY

20
25

Preventable - This Year Preventable - Last Year

0.0

0.4

0.8

1.2

1.6

2.0

M
ay

/F
Y2

02
4

Ju
n/

FY
20

24

Ju
l/F

Y2
02

5

Aug
/F

Y2
02

5

Se
p/

FY
20

25

Oct/
FY

20
25

Non-Preventable - This Year Non-Preventable - Last Year

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

Safety Performance

Preventable Accident Report Preventable Accidents Per 100,000 Miles
Last Six Months - System Wide

Non-Preventable Accidents Per 100,000 Miles
Last Six Months - System Wide

Non-Preventable Preventable

This Year Last Year

0.00

0.24

0.48

0.72

0.96

1.20

0.970.97

1.161.16

0.650.65

0.870.87

YTD Change

Year-over-Year - System Wide
Accidents Per 100,000 Miles

Page 2/5



M
ay

/F
Y2

02
4

Ju
n/

FY
20

24

Ju
l/F

Y2
02

5

Aug
/F

Y2
02

5

Se
p/

FY
20

25

Oct/
FY

20
25

This Year Last Year

0

25,000

50,000

75,000

100,000

125,000

M
ay

/F
Y2

02
4

Ju
n/

FY
20

24

Ju
l/F

Y2
02

5

Aug
/F

Y2
02

5

Se
p/

FY
20

25

Oct/
FY

20
25

This Year Last Year

0.0%

17.0%

34.0%

51.0%

68.0%

85.0%

Fixed Route Performance

M
ay

/F
Y2

02
4

Ju
n/

FY
20

24

Ju
l/F

Y2
02

5

Aug
/F

Y2
02

5

Se
p/

FY
20

25

Oct/
FY

20
25

This Year Last Year

$0.00

$40.00

$80.00

$120.00

$160.00

$200.00

Total Ridership On Time Performance Operating Cost Per
Revenue Hour

Passengers Per Revenue Hour

M
ay

/F
Y2

02
4

Ju
n/

FY
20

24

Ju
l/F

Y2
02

5

Aug
/F

Y2
02

5

Se
p/

FY
20

25

Oct/
FY

20
25

This Year Last Year

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0Metric This Year Prior Year % Change

Customer
Service

% of Trips On Time

Average Miles Between Roadca

Complaints Per 100k Riders

Ridership Per Rev. Hour

Financial Operating Costs Per Rev. Hour

Ridership Ridership

78.30

5,044.73

33.42

8.36

150.30

101,742.00

76.95

4,643.19

37.93

8.75

163.04

97,552.00

+1.8%

+8.6%

-11.9%

-4.5%

-7.8%

+4.3%

Year-over-Year Report - Fixed Route

Page 3/5



 Metric This Year Prior Year % Change

Customer
Service

% of Trips On Time

Complaints Per 100k Riders

Ridership Per Rev. Hour

Financial Operating Costs Per Rev. Hour

Ridership Ridership

89.30

97.79

2.80

131.96

10,226.00

89.32

114.81

2.52

118.21

9,581.00

-0.0%

-14.8%

+11.1%

+11.6%

+6.7%

M
ay

/F
Y2

02
4

Ju
n/

FY
20

24

Ju
l/F

Y2
02

5

Aug
/F

Y2
02

5

Se
p/

FY
20

25

Oct/
FY

20
25

This Year Last Year

0.0

0.6

1.2

1.8

2.4

3.0

M
ay

/F
Y2

02
4

Ju
n/

FY
20

24

Ju
l/F

Y2
02

5

Aug
/F

Y2
02

5

Se
p/

FY
20

25

Oct/
FY

20
25

This Year Last Year

0

2,100

4,200

6,300

8,400

10,500

MedVan, Paratransit, and MOD
Performance

Total Ridership Passengers Per Revenue Hour

M
ay

/F
Y2

02
4

Ju
n/

FY
20

24

Ju
l/F

Y2
02

5

Aug
/F

Y2
02

5

Se
p/

FY
20

25

Oct/
FY

20
25

This Year Last Year

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

MedVan

M
ay

/F
Y2

02
4

Ju
n/

FY
20

24

Ju
l/F

Y2
02

5

Aug
/F

Y2
02

5

Se
p/

FY
20

25

Oct/
FY

20
25

This Year Last Year

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

 Metric This Year Prior Year % Change

Customer
Service

% of Trips On Time

Complaints Per 100k Riders

Ridership Per Rev. Hour

Financial Operating Costs Per Rev. Hour

Ridership Ridership

96.30

386.85

1.97

131.96

517.00

92.80

0.00

1.81

121.93

656.00

+3.8%

+8.8%

+8.2%

-21.2%

Paratransit

Total Ridership Passengers Per Revenue Hour

Year-over-Year Report

Year-over-Year Report

Page 4/5



Metric This Year Prior Year % Change

Customer
Service

Complaints Per 100k Riders

Ridership Per Rev. Hour

Financial Operating Costs Per Rev. Hour

Ridership Ridership

0.00

4.06

89.29

4,306.00

0.00

3.86

82.48

4,107.00

+5.2%

+8.3%

+4.8%

M
ay

/F
Y2

02
4

Ju
n/

FY
20

24

Ju
l/F

Y2
02

5

Aug
/F

Y2
02

5

Se
p/

FY
20

25

Oct/
FY

20
25

This Year Last Year

0

1,100

2,200

3,300

4,400

5,500

M
ay

/F
Y2

02
4

Ju
n/

FY
20

24

Ju
l/F

Y2
02

5

Aug
/F

Y2
02

5

Se
p/

FY
20

25

Oct/
FY

20
25

This Year Last Year

0.0

0.9

1.8

2.7

3.6

4.5

Metric This Year Prior Year % Change

Customer
Service

Complaints Per 100k Riders

Ridership Per Rev. Hour

Financial Operating Costs Per Rev. Hour

Ridership Ridership

51.26

5.42

131.96

9,754.00

28.06

5.66

116.64

10,692.00

+82.7%

-4.2%

+13.1%

-8.8%

M
ay

/F
Y2

02
4

Ju
n/

FY
20

24

Ju
l/F

Y2
02

5

Aug
/F

Y2
02

5

Se
p/

FY
20

25

Oct/
FY

20
25

This Year Last Year

0

2,500

5,000

7,500

10,000

12,500

M
ay

/F
Y2

02
4

Ju
n/

FY
20

24

Ju
l/F

Y2
02

5

Aug
/F

Y2
02

5

Se
p/

FY
20

25

Oct/
FY

20
25

This Year Last Year

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

MOD

Year-over-Year Report

Passengers Per Revenue HourTotal Ridership

TMR

Year-over-Year Report

Passengers Per Revenue HourTotal Ridership

Page 5/5



TAB 3 
Agenda Item #7a 

ACTION ITEM: Revised DBE Triennial Goal for FFY 2023‐2025   

Board of Directors Meeting 
Wednesday December 11, 2024 

ECCTA Boardroom 
801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509



Agenda Item #7a 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
December 11, 2024 

Staff Report to ECCTA Board of Directors 
Meeting Date: December 11, 2024 

Agenda Item: Revised DBE Triennial Goal for FFY 2023-2025– Agenda Item #7A 

Lead Staff: Tania Babcock, Compliance Manager 

Approved: Rashidi Barnes, Chief Executive Officer 

Background 
ECCTA implements a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program in accordance with 49 
CFR Part 26 and is required to set an overall triennial goal for Federal Transit Administration (FTA)-
assisted contracts every three years.   

ECCTA’s original triennial goal for Federal Fiscal Years 2023-2025 was approved by the Board of 
Directors on May 25, 2022.  At that time, the Board of Directors were informed that ECCTA would 
revise the DBE triennial goal after the architectural/engineering hydrogen fuel station consultant 
completed a cost estimate for construction of the hydrogen fuel station. ECCTA will use federal 
funding for the construction of the hydrogen fuel station and for replacing electric vehicle charging 
stations during Federal Fiscal Year 2025, which required the DBE triennial goal to be recalculated. 

Discussion 
Due to the change in anticipated FTA-assisted contracting opportunities scheduled to be awarded 
during Federal Fiscal Year 2025, ECCTA re-calculated the DBE goal based on the approved 
methodology and adjusted the DBE triennial goal from zero percent (0%) to one percent (1%).   

Financial Impact 
Adjusting the DBE triennial goal from zero percent (0%) to one percent (1%) does not financially 
impact ECCTA. 



Agenda Item #7a 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
December 11, 2024 

Requested Action 
Approve Resolution #241211A accepting ECCTA’s revised DBE triennial goal of one percent (1%) 
for FTA-assisted contracts for FFY 2023-2025 and authorizing staff to submit the goal to the FTA. 

Attached 
• ECCTA’s revised DBE Triennial Goal for FFY 2023-2025



RESOLUTION #241211A 
REVISED DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) TRIENNIAL GOAL  

FOR FFY 2023-2025 

Resolution #241211A accepting ECCTA’s revised DBE triennial goal of one percent (1%) for FTA-
assisted contracts for FFY 2023-2025 and authorizing staff to submit the goal to the FTA. 

WHEREAS, in accordance with 49 CFR Part 26, Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority (ECCTA) 
originally established a zero percent (0%) overall goal for DBE participation on all FTA-assisted 
contracts for FFY 2023-2025 that was approved by ECCTA’s Board of Directors on May 25, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, due to a change in anticipated FTA-assisted contracting opportunities scheduled to be 
awarded during FFY 2025, ECCTA re-calculated the DBE triennial goal following the procedures 
established by 49 CFR Part 26; and  

WHEREAS, ECCTA proposed the DBE triennial goal be adjusted from zero percent (0%) to one percent 
(1%) for FFY 2023-2025; and 

WHEREAS, ECCTA published the public notice and proposed goal and methodology for the revised 
DBE triennial goal on its website on October 31, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, ECCTA mailed the public notice to the organizations that participated in the April 2022 
Consultation and Public Participation meetings and to the local Chambers of Commerce in ECCTA’s 
service area on October 31, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, ECCTA distributed the public notice at a DBE and SBE event on November 8, 2024 in 
Oakland, California. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Eastern Contra Costa 
Transit Authority to adopt Resolution #241211A accepting ECCTA’s revised DBE triennial goal of one 
percent (1%) for FTA-assisted contracts for FFY 2023-2025 and authorizing staff to submit the goal to 
the FTA.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 11th day of December 2024, by the following votes: 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

_____________________________   _________________________________ 

  Diane Burgis, Chair   Rashidi Barnes, Chief Executive Officer 

AYES:  _____  
NOES:  _____ 
ABSENT: _____ 
ABSTENTIONS: _____ 



Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Revised Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 

Triennial Goal 

FFY 2023 - FFY 2025  

December 2024 

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 
(ECCTA)- Recipient ID 5617  

            Attachment 1



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 2 

December 2024 

 

Table of Contents 
Introduction ..................................................................................................................................... 3 

Summary ......................................................................................................................................... 3 

FTA Money ..................................................................................................................................... 4 

Determining Local Market Area ..................................................................................................... 4 

Goal Methodology .......................................................................................................................... 5 

Step-One: Determining Base Figure ............................................................................................... 5 

Step-Two: Adjusting Step-One Base Figure................................................................................... 7 

Race-Neutral/Race-Conscious ........................................................................................................ 9 

Public Participation/Publication.................................................................................................... 10 

Conclusion .................................................................................................................................... 11 

Appendix ....................................................................................................................................... 12 

Original DBE Triennial Goal Public Notice English .................................................................... 13 

Original DBE Triennial Goal Public Notice Spanish ................................................................... 14 

Original DBE Triennial Goal Tri Delta Transit Webpage ............................................................ 15 

Email/Invitation Letter/Flyer/ List of Community-Based Organizations Invited to Consultation 

Meeting on April 11, 2022 and Public Participation Meetings on April 11, 2022 and April 26, 

2022............................................................................................................................................... 17 

April 2022 BOC Public Participation Meeting Comment Card and Comments .......................... 25 

FFY 2023-2025 Original DBE Triennial Goal Board Resolution ................................................ 32 

Revised DBE Triennial Goal Public Notice English .................................................................... 34 

Revised DBE Triennial Goal Public Notice Spanish .................................................................... 35 

Revised DBE Triennial Goal Tri Delta Transit Webpage ............................................................ 36 

FFY 2023-2025 Revised DBE Triennial Goal Board Resolution ................................................ 37 

 

  



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 3 

December 2024 

Introduction 

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority (ECCTA) implements a Disadvantaged Business 

Enterprise (DBE) Program in accordance with Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 

26 (49 CFR Part 26).  The DBE regulations require United States Department of Transportation 

(U.S. DOT) recipients to implement a DBE program and set triennial DBE participation goals. 

The methodology to calculate the DBE triennial goal is a two-step process described in 49 CFR 

Part 26.  Step-One of the methodology establishes a base figure for the anticipated U.S. DOT-

assisted contracts to be awarded in the period.  The base figure is derived from the relative 

availability of ready, willing and able DBEs in relationship to all comparable businesses that are 

ready, willing and able to participate in the anticipated U.S. DOT-assisted contracts.  Step-Two 

relies on ECCTA’s examination of evidence from its local market area to determine if an 

adjustment to the base figure is needed.   

 

The DBE goal reflects ECCTA’s determination of the level of DBE participation expected 

absent the effects of discrimination.   As a recipient of federal money through the Federal Transit 

Administration (FTA), ECCTA has included a narrative description accompanied by tables and 

calculations in its goal setting and methodology to provide a clear explanation of how ECCTA 

developed its DBE triennial goal for FFY 2023-2025. 

Summary 

In determining the DBE goal for the federal fiscal period of October 1, 2022 - September 30, 

2025 based on the Federal Fiscal Year of October 1 – September 30, ECCTA reviewed the 

anticipated FTA- assisted contracting opportunities over this period, exclusive of any FTA funds 

to be used for the purchase of transit vehicles as transit vehicle purchases are excluded from the 

goal setting process.   It then determined a base figure that represented the percent of DBE 

participation that would be expected if there existed a level playing field between DBE firms and 

non-DBE firms.  Evidence available from ECCTA’s local market area was examined to 

determine if an adjustment to the base figure was warranted.  This methodology was then 

brought before relevant stakeholders in the DBE and non-DBE community in April 2022 before 

the DBE goal was set at zero percent (0%) for FFY 2023-2025.   

Due to a change in anticipated FTA-assisted contracting opportunities prior to September 30, 

2025, ECCTA re-calculated the DBE goal and on October 31, 2024 informed the same relevant 

stakeholders in the DBE and non-DBE community of the proposed re-calculated DBE goal and 

methodology.  Based on the revised calculations, ECCTA proposed the DBE goal be adjusted to 

one percent (1%) for FFY 2023-2025.  

The revised DBE goal is posted on ECCTA’s website: www.trideltatransit.com 

 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 4 

December 2024 

FTA Money 

ECCTA receives FTA-assisted money from various funding sources which may include FTA, 

CalTrans, and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC). The money includes Section 

5307, Section 5310, Section 5311, and Section 5339 funding, among others.  Due to the nature of 

how MTC determines its funding allocation, the amount of money that ECCTA receives from 

these funding sources can vary, and are often blocked off for specific purposes, such as bus 

replacement.   During FFY 2023-2025, ECCTA anticipates receiving $1,980,000 in Americans 

with Disabilities Act (ADA) operating assistance.  ECCTA currently contracts its fixed-route and 

paratransit services to a private contractor, Transdev, and applies the ADA operating assistance 

toward supplementing the cost of operating ADA paratransit service.   ECCTA will receive 

$3,998,543 towards construction of a hydrogen fueling station and $535,628 towards 

construction of electric charging stations on its existing property in Antioch, California.  

 

Table 1 reflects the anticipated FTA-assisted contracting opportunities subject to the overall 

triennial goal period of FFY 2023-2025. 

Table 1- FTA-Assisted Contracting Opportunities 

Description of Contract FTA Dollars 

ADA operating assistance $1,980,000 

Electric charging stations $535,628 

Hydrogen fueling station $3,998,543 

Total $6,514,171 

Determining Local Market Area 

The following areas were considered in determining ECCTA’s local market area: 

1) The area in which ECCTA spends the majority of its contracting dollars 

 

2) The area in which the substantial majority of the contractors and subcontractors with 

which ECCTA does business are located 

 

ECCTA’s service area includes 225 square miles in Eastern Contra Costa County, which is also 

where ECCTA’s headquarters is located.  Currently all of the contracting dollars are spent in 

Contra Costa County. 

 

ECCTA determined that the majority of contractors and subcontractors are located in the 

counties of Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Sacramento, San Francisco, San Mateo, San Joaquin, 

Santa Clara and Solano.  ECCTA will use these counties to determine the number of DBEs and 

all firms in its local market area. 

 

 

 

 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 5 

December 2024 

Goal Methodology 
Step-One: Determining Base Figure 

Base figures were calculated for contracts to be awarded during FFY 2023-2025 to determine the 

relative availability of DBEs in specific areas of expertise using the North American Industrial 

Classification System (NAICS) codes.  ECCTA examined NAICS codes that would be 

associated with transportation providers able to provide its fixed route and paratransit service and 

NAICS codes involved in the construction of the hydrogen fueling station and electric charging 

stations. 

At this time, ECCTA contracts with one transportation provider for fixed route and paratransit 

services.  The layout of ECCTA’s facility in Antioch, California currently is only able to 

accommodate one contracted transportation provider.  Limited facility space and parking space, 

as well as the current design and layout of ECCTA’s facility, and additional costs associated with 

housing two transportation providers, reasonably allow for only one contracted transportation 

provider.  

The NAICS code, description, and associated contracting opportunity are identified in column A, 

B and C of Table 2. 

Table 2-NAICS Code and Associated Contracting Opportunity 

A. NAICS CODE  B. NAICS 

DESCRIPTION 

C. CONTRACTING 

OPPORTUNITY 

485113 Bus and other Motor Vehicle 

Transit Systems 

ADA operating assistance 

238210 Electrical Contractors and 

Other Wiring Installation 

Contractors 

Electric charging stations 

423830 Industrial Machinery and 

Equipment Merchant 

Wholesalers 

Hydrogen fueling station 

423610 Electrical Apparatus and 

Equipment, Wiring Supplies 

and Related Equipment 

Merchant Wholesalers 

Hydrogen fueling station 

541330 Engineering Services Hydrogen fueling station 

238910 Site Preparation Contractors Hydrogen fueling station 

238990 All Other Specialty Trade 

Contractors 

Hydrogen fueling station 

 

Number of DBEs: To determine the number of DBEs in ECCTAs nine county market area, 

ECCTA searched the California Department of Transportation’s CUCP1 database for DBEs that 

are certified in the identified NAICS code.  The number of DBEs identified is displayed in 

column C of Table 3. 

 

                                                 
1 https://caltrans.dbesystem.com/ 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 6 

December 2024 

Number of All Firms (DBEs and non-DBEs): To determine the number of all firms (DBEs and 

non-DBEs) in ECCTAs nine county market area, ECCTA searched the United States Census 

Bureau’s most recent California Business Patterns (CBP) 2  database, 2022 data table, for all 

firms in the identified NAICS codes. Numbers of all firms identified are displayed in column D 

of Table 3. 

 

Relative Availability of DBE Firms: Relative availability is derived by dividing the number of 

DBEs available in a particular NAICS code by the number of all firms in that NAICS code.  

Column E in Table 3 displays the relative availability of DBE firms for the associated NAICS 

code. 

 

Table 3- DBE Availability by NAICS Code 
A. NAICS 

CODE  

B. NAICS 

DESCRIPTION 

C. DBEs 

AVAILABLE 

TO 

PERFORM 

THIS WORK 

D. ALL FIRMS 

AVAILABLE  

E. RELATIVE DBE 

AVAILABILITY 

485113 Bus and other Motor 

Vehicle Transit 

Systems 

0 13 0.0000 

 

238210 Electrical Contractors 

and Other Wiring 

Installation Contractors 

32 2128 0.0150 

 

423830 Industrial Machinery 

and Equipment 

Merchant Wholesalers 

3 485 0.0062 

423610 Electrical Apparatus 

and Equipment, Wiring 

Supplies and Related 

Equipment Merchant 

Wholesalers 

7 379 0.0185 

 

541330 Engineering Services 90 2552 0.0353 

 

238910 Site Preparation 

Contractors 

21 481 0.0437 

 

238990 All Other Specialty 

Trade Contractors 

14 694 0.0202 

 

Calculating Weighted Base Figure: Contract dollars of each industry classification were 

divided by the total contract dollars resulting in percentage of total dollars per classification.  

This weighted percentage is displayed in column D of Table 4. 

 

 

 
 

                                                 
2 As found with the U.S. Census data tool, County Business Patterns, CBP Tables 2022  



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 7 

December 2024 

Table 4- Calculating Weighted Base Figure 
A. NAICS 

CODE 

B. CONTRACTING 

OPPORTUNITY 

C. FTA 

DOLLARS 

D. WEIGHTED % 

OF TOTAL FTA 

DOLLARS 

E. DBE   

AVAILABILITY 

F. BASE 

FIGURE 

485113 ADA operating 

assistance 

$1,980,000 0.3040 

 

0.0000 

 

0.0000 

 

238210 Electric charging 

stations 

$535,628 0.0822 

 

0.0150 

 

0.0012 

 

423830 Hydrogen fueling 

station 

$3,283,068 0.5040 

 

0.0062 0.0031 

423610 Hydrogen fueling 

station 

$71,600 0.0110 

 

0.0185 

 

0.0002 

 

541330 Hydrogen fueling 

station 

$375,000 0.0576 

 

0.0353 

 

0.0020 

 

238910 Hydrogen fueling 

station 

$80,625 0.0124 

 

0.0437 

 

0.0005 

 

238990 Hydrogen fueling 

station 

$188,250 0.0289 

 

0.0202 0.0006 

 

 Total $6,514,171 1  0.0077 

 

 Expressed as a % .77% 

Rounded 

Weighted Base 

Figure 

1% 

 

Overall Goal Base Figure:  The base figure for the overall goal was calculated by multiplying 

the weighted percentage of funds to be expended for each NAICS code by DBE relative 

availability for each NAICS code.   

 
Step-Two: Adjusting Step-One Base Figure 
 

49 C.F.R. Section 26.45 Part 26 requires an examination of available relevant evidence to 

determine what additional adjustment to the Base Figure is needed, if any, to narrowly tailor the 

Base Figure to ECCTA’s marketplace and to establish the overall DBE goal.  To adjust the base 

figure, ECCTA reviewed and assessed other known evidence potentially impacting the relative 

availability of DBEs within ECCTA’s local market area, in accordance with prescribed narrow 

tailoring provisions set forth in 49 CFR Part 26.45.  Evidence considered in making an 

adjustment to the base figure included ECCTA’s past DBE participation, disparity studies, and 

consultation/public participation information. 

ECCTA did not consider past participation as relevant for adjusting the base figure due to the 

infrequency of contracting opportunities. 

 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 8 

December 2024 

ECCTA reviewed disparity studies in its local market area and found a San Francisco Bay Area 

Rapid Transit District (BART) Disparity Study issued on January 12, 20173 and a California 

Department of Transportation (Caltrans) Disparity Study that was completed on August 6, 20214.  

Caltrans is currently completing a new disparity study with results expected to be available in 

September 2025. 

 

The BART Disparity Study documented a statistically significant disparity in construction 

procurements for African American owned firms, Asian American owned firms, Hispanic 

American owned firms and Caucasian female owned firms.   The BART Disparity Study also 

documented a statistically significant disparity in professional services procurements for Asian 

American owned firms, Hispanic American owned firms and Caucasian female owned firms.  

 

ECCTA did not find the BART Disparity Study to be relevant to ECCTA as BART’s 

marketplace is significantly larger than ECCTA’s marketplace and the types of contracts 

awarded by BART are not substantially similar to the contracts awarded by ECCTA. 

 

The Caltrans Disparity study “examined disparity analysis results separately for construction and 

professional services work to assess whether contracting outcomes differ by industry….  

minority‐ and woman‐owned businesses considered together exhibited substantial disparities on 

both construction (disparity index of 73) and professional services (disparity index of 50) 

contracts. Results for individual groups indicate that: 

• All groups except non‐Hispanic white woman‐owned businesses (disparity index of 133) 

and Native American‐owned businesses (disparity index of 81) showed substantial 

disparities on construction contracts. A disparity index of 81 indicates a disparity, but it  

does not reach the threshold to be considered substantial. 

• All groups except Subcontinent Asian American‐owned businesses (disparity index of 110) 

showed substantial disparities on professional services contracts.” 

 

ECCTA did not find the Caltrans Disparity Study to be relevant to ECCTA.  The Caltrans 

Disparity Study is based on the statewide marketplace.  ECCTA’s marketplace consists of the 

counties of Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Sacramento, San Francisco, San Mateo, San Joaquin, 

Santa Clara and Solano.   ECCTA does not believe the general statewide statistical findings of 

the disparity study can be interpolated to ECCTA’s limited market area given the demographic 

differences between the various regions in California.  In addition, the types of contracts awarded 

by Caltrans are not substantially similar to the contracts awarded by ECCTA.  

 

After reviewing the information, ECCTA did not make any adjustments to its overall base figure. 

 

ECCTA is a member of the Business Outreach Committee (BOC) in the San Francisco Bay 

Area.  The BOC is a consortium of San Francisco Bay Area Transit and Transportation 

Agencies.  BOC members include: Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District, Alameda County 

Transportation Commission, California Department of Transportation, California High Speed 

                                                 
3 As found in the January 12, 2017 San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District Disparity Study Volume 1 

https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/VI.BART%20Final%20Report.Volume%20I.1.12.2017_1.pdf 
4 As found in the August 6, 2021 Caltrans Disparity Study https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/civil-

rights/documents/disparity-study/caltrans-disparity-study-2021-final-report.pdf 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 9 

December 2024 

Rail Authority, Central Contra Costa Transit Authority, City of Rio Vista, City of Santa Rosa, 

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority, Golden Gate Bridge Highway and Transportation 

District, Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority, Marin Transit, Metropolitan 

Transportation Commission, Napa Valley Transportation Authority, Port of Oakland, San 

Francisco Bay Ferry/WETA, San Francisco County Transportation Authority, San Francisco 

International Airport, San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District, San Francisco Municipal 

Transportation Agency, San Mateo County Transit District/Peninsula Joint Power Authority, 

Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority, Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District, Solano 

County Transit, Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit, Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District, 

Transbay Joint Powers Authority and Western Contra Costa Transit Authority. 

 

ECCTA participates in BOC group programs, activities and efforts in the San Francisco Bay 

Area.  These efforts help to create a level playing field on which DBEs and small businesses can 

compete fairly, enhance outreach and communication efforts with these firms, and provide 

appropriate assistance and information for participation in DOT-assisted contracts.  Through the 

BOC, ECCTA conducts outreach to introduce procurement opportunities to construction firms, 

professional services firms, product suppliers and manufacturers.  The BOC publishes a quarterly 

“Contracting Opportunities” newsletter that features contracting opportunities, resources, and 

guidance for small businesses and DBEs. ECCTA publishes its contracting opportunities in the 

newsletter and current issues of the newsletter are placed on ECCTA’s website at 

www.trideltatransit.com. 

 
ECCTA participated in a virtual Consultation Meeting and Virtual series of Public Participation 

Meetings for establishing the original DBE triennial goal in April 2022.  The details of the April 

2022 outreach meetings are in the Appendix.   

 

When two new FTA-assisted contracting opportunities arose and ECCTA re-calculated the 

Triennial DBE Goal in October 2024, ECCTA performed outreach to those who participated in 

the consultation and public participation meetings held in April 2022 to notify them that ECCTA 

re-calculated the triennial DBE goal and requested public comment on the re-calculated goal that 

adjusted ECCTA’s DBE triennial goal to one percent (1%). 

Race-Neutral/Race-Conscious 

Consistent with the intent of leveling the competitive playing field for DBE firms, the U.S. DOT 

requires the maximum feasible portion of the DBE overall goal be achieved by race-neutral 

means.  When a DBE firm wins a prime contract through normal competitive means, receives a 

subcontract from a prime that does not have a DBE goal attached, or receives a subcontract from 

a prime that did not consider its DBE status when making the award, it is considered to have 

done so through race-neutral means. 

 

Race-conscious means, such as contract goals, take race into consideration.  However, two 

complications arise in this area: one, California Proposition 209 requires that race-conscious 

means for contracts only apply to U.S. DOT-funded contracts; and two, the Ninth Circuit Court 

of Appeals ruled in Western States Paving Co, Inc. v. Washington State Department of 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 10 

December 2024 

Transportation, 407 F.3d 983 (9th Cir. 2005), that race-conscious means can only be used on 

U.S. DOT-funded contracts when there is evidence of discrimination against specific groups. 

ECCTA strives to meet its goal through race-neutral means.  However, if ECCTA finds a 

disparity study relevant to its market area and contracting opportunities, ECCTA may consider 

requesting approval from the FTA to use race-conscious means if it determines the need in the 

future. 

Public Participation/Publication 
ECCTA is a member of the BOC and participates in BOC group programs, activities, and efforts 

in the San Francisco Bay Area.  These efforts help to create a level playing field on which DBEs 

and small businesses can compete fairly, enhance outreach and communication efforts with these 

firms, and provide appropriate assistance and information for participation in DOT-assisted 

contracts.   
 
ECCTA, in collaboration with other BOC members, conducted a virtual Consultation Meeting on 

April 11, 2022 and a series of virtual Public Participation Meetings on April 11, 2022 and April 

26, 2022.   Interested parties were notified that BOC member agencies were beginning the 

process of establishing overall DBE triennial goals for contracts and procurements that may be 

financed in whole or in part by the FTA for FFY 2023-2025. The meetings included an overview 

of the DBE program, DBE goal setting exercise, comment period for input on proposed DBE 

goals, and notice of upcoming contracting opportunities.  ECCTA discussed its proposed DBE 

triennial goal and provided an opportunity for feedback on the proposed goal at the Consultation 

and Public Participation Meetings. 

On March 7, 2022 the Public Participation Meeting flyer and ECCTA’s public notice announcing 

its original proposed DBE triennial goal were posted on ECCTA’s website at 

www.trideltatransit.com.   This information was posted on ECCTA’s website in conjunction with 

the e-mailed invitation letter sent on March 8, 2022 and the U.S. Postal Service mailed invitation 

letter sent on March 10, 2022 to Community Based Organizations for the Consultation and 

Public Participation Meetings.  ECCTA’s original public notice informed the public that the 

proposed DBE triennial goal and its rationale were available online and in-person for inspection 

during normal business hours at its administrative office in Antioch, California for a thirty-day 

comment period.   ECCTA posted the original public notice and proposed overall goal and 

methodology on its website: www.trideltatransit.com.  

On March 8, 2022 ECCTA mailed the original public notice, the proposed overall DBE goal and 

methodology, and the Consultation Meeting and Public Participation invitation letter to local 

Chambers of Commerce in ECCTA’s service area, including the Antioch, Brentwood, Bay Point, 

Concord, Martinez, Oakley and Pittsburg Chambers of Commerce.  

On October 31, 2024, ECCTA posted the public notice announcing the revised proposed DBE 

triennial goal on its website at www.trideltatransit.com. ECCTA’s public notice informed the 

public that the proposed revised DBE triennial goal and its rationale were available online and 

in-person for inspection during normal business hours at its administrative office in Antioch, 

California for a thirty-day comment period.      



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 11 

December 2024 

On October 31, 2024, ECCTA mailed the public notice to the organizations that participated in 

the April 2022 Consultation and Public Participation meetings and to the local Chambers of 

Commerce in ECCTA’s service area, including the Antioch, Brentwood, Bay Point, Concord, 

Martinez, Oakley and Pittsburg Chambers of Commerce.  

On November 8, 2024, ECCTA distributed the public notice to DBEs and SBEs that attended a 

“Meet the Primes Panel Discussion and Business Networking” event hosted by the Business 

Outreach Committee at the Joseph P. Bort MetroCenter in Oakland, CA. 

ECCTA received no public comments on the proposed revised DBE triennial goal. 

Conclusion 

ECCTA’s DBE triennial goal for FTA-assisted contracts for FFY 2023-2025 was originally set 

at zero percent (0%).   Based on two new FTA-assisted contracting opportunities that arose 

during the federal fiscal period of October 1, 2022 - September 30, 2025, ECCTA re-calculated 

the DBE triennial goal and the goal was adjusted to one percent (1%).  

 

If information is needed in another language, please contact 1-925-754-6622. 

Si necesita información en Español, llame al 1- 925-754-6622 

如果需要中文信息，请致电 1-925-754-6622. 

Kung kailangan ng impormasyon sa Tagalog, mangyaring tumawag sa 1-925-754-6622. 

Nếu cần thông tin bằng tiếng Việt, vui lòng gọi 1-925-754-6622. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 12 

December 2024 

Appendix 

1) Original DBE Triennial Goal Public Notice English 

2) Original DBE Triennial Goal Public Notice Spanish 

3) Original DBE Triennial Goal Tri Delta Transit Webpage- www.trideltatransit.com 

4) Email/ Invitation letter/ Flyer/ List of Community-Based Organizations Invited to the 

Consultation Meeting on April 11, 2022 and Public Participation Meetings on April 11, 2022 and 

April 26, 2022 

5) BOC April 2022 Public Participation Meeting Comment Card and Comments 

6) Original DBE Triennial Goal Board Resolution 

7) Revised DBE Triennial Goal Public Notice English 

8) Revised DBE Triennial Goal Public Notice Spanish 

9) Revised DBE Triennial Goal Tri Delta Transit Webpage- www.trideltatransit.com 

10) Revised DBE Triennial Goal Board Resolution 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 13 

December 2024 

Original DBE Triennial Goal Public Notice English 

 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

14 

December 2024 

Original DBE Triennial Goal Public Notice Spanish 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 15 

December 2024 

Original DBE Triennial Goal Tri Delta Transit Webpage 

 
 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 16 

December 2024 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 17 

December 2024 

Email/Invitation Letter/Flyer/ List of Community-Based Organizations 
Invited to Consultation Meeting on April 11, 2022 and Public 
Participation Meetings on April 11, 2022 and April 26, 2022 

 

 
 

 

 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

18 

December 2024 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 19 

December 2024 

 
 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

20 

December 2024 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

21 

December 2024 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 22 

December 2024 

 
 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

23 

December 2024 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 24 

December 2024 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 25 

December 2024 

April 2022 BOC Public Participation Meeting Comment Card and 
Comments 

 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

26 

December 2024 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 27 

December 2024 

 
 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 28 

December 2024 

ECCTA, in collaboration with other BOC members, conducted a Consultation Meeting on April 

11, 2022 and a series of Public Participation Meetings on April 11, 2022 and April 26, 2022.  

The Consultation Meeting and Public Participation Meetings were held virtually over the Cisco 

WebEx Platform due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic.  All interested parties were notified 

that member agencies were beginning the process of establishing overall DBE triennial goals for 

contracts and procurements that may be financed in whole or in part by FTA funds for FFY 

2023-2025. 

   

Consultation Meeting- April 11, 2022 

The Consultation Meeting was dedicated to various trade groups, minority, women’s and 

general contractor groups, community organizations, and technical resource groups from the San 

Francisco Bay Area. On March 8, 2022, an electronic invitation letter to Community Based 

Organizations (CBOs) was sent to 90 e-mails.  ECCTA also distributed the invitation letter via 

U.S. Postal Service mail on March 10, 2022.   Various trade groups, minority, women’s and 

general contractor groups, community organizations, and technical resource groups from the San 

Francisco Bay Area were invited such as the African American, Asian, Black, Hispanic, Filipino, 

Japanese, American Indian Chambers of Commerce; the Bay Area Builders Exchange, the San 

Francisco Builders Exchange and the Sacramento Builders Exchange; the U.S. Small Business 

Administration (SBA); National Association of Women Business Owners San Francisco Bay 

Area Chapter and Silicon Valley Chapter; Marin Builders Association; Veterans Business 

Outreach Center; National Organization of Minority Architects San Francisco Chapter; Women 

in Consulting San Francisco Chapter; Department of General Services Office of Small Business 

Certification and Resources; National Association of Women in Construction; American 

Subcontractors Association; Small Business Development Centers; and NorCal Procurement 

Technical Assistance Center (PTAC).  A total of four organizations registered, but only two were 

present. Representatives from NorCal PTAC and the SBA attended the consultation session.  20 

BOC members also attended the consultation session. 

 

The BOC asked questions to get feedback on issues within the DBE/SBE community, 

challenges to the DBE program, and how agencies can better assist DBEs/SBEs. The questions 

included: 

• What are the major barriers for your members in competing for contracting opportunities? 

• What trades are there a lack of/plethora of DBE participation? 

• What are some recommended strategies to attract and increase DBE participation? 

• Do you have suggestions for resources and references that the BOC should develop, 

maintain, 

        and disseminate to your members? 

• How can the Business Outreach Committee assist you in your mission? 

 

Comments received from NorCal PTAC and SBA included: 

• One of the barriers is that some of the primes are reluctant to use DBE certified firms 

because they are new and/or don’t have prior experience.   

• Pre-proposal conferences are good for DBE firms to meet the primes and see what 

requirements are for projects. 

• SBA does liaison work with federal agencies and would like to support outreach efforts and 

information sharing to help reach the small business community. 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 29 

December 2024 

• Most of the agencies that are federally funded do not have a procurement feature for vendors 

to “opt in” or post a vendor ad to reach a prime for a construction or professional services 

contract. 

• Why have the majority of transit agencies not listed their DBE goals? A response was 

provided that several agencies were still finalizing their proposed goals and there is another 

BOC Public Participation Meeting scheduled for April 26, 2022 and that MTC and VTA 

would also host a Public Participation Meeting on June 7, 2022 that would include additional 

transit agencies. 

• How many of the transit agencies that receive over $100 million dollars conducted a disparity 

study? A response was provided that BART, VTA and Golden Gate Bridge, Highway, and 

Transportation District were doing a disparity study.  It was noted that a disparity study is a 

challenge as it costs approximately $1/2 to $3/4 of a million dollars and takes on average 3 

years to complete. 

• NorCal PTAC encouraged transit agencies to use them as a resource to assist small 

businesses. 

 

The presentation for the Consultation Meeting held on April 11, 2022 is located online at  

https://www.goldengate.org/assets/1/6/consultation_presentation.pdf and the recording is located 

online at: 

https://goldengate.webex.com/recordingservice/sites/goldengate/recording/2328ab639be2103abf

7bca6d6344b975/playback Password: con411 

 

The BOC offered two separate Public Participation meetings held via the Cisco WebEx Platform 

on April 11, 2022 and April 26, 2022. The meetings were open to the public to receive comments 

and questions on the overall goal setting process, discuss the proposed projected DBE goals from 

each participating agency, and answer any questions or concerns. The BOC distributed an 

electronic invitation and event flyer to approximately 9,354 businesses. The flyer was advertised 

in the Small Business Exchange on March 31, 2022 and April  7, 2022 and was promoted on 

NorCal PTAC’s event calendar and website at: https://www.norcalptac.org/events/business-

outreach-committee-boc-public-participation-meeting.  

 

Public Participation Meeting- April 11, 2022 

57 individuals registered for the Public Participation Meeting on April 11, 2022 and 41 attended, 

including 21 firms/members of the public and 20 BOC members.  

 

Listed below are comments received and addressed at the April 11th meeting: 

• After the goal setting is done, do any agencies follow up with resource availability for the 

DBE contractor? Different types of assistance are needed for the different markets and 

subcontractors.   An example was given that many DBE subcontractors do not know how 

to estimate. More assistance in the form of teaching, classes, etc. needs to be given to the 

DBE community so they learn how to be competitive and get bids.  BOC responded 

stating that technical assistance and DBE supportive services are offered by the BOC.  

Some challenges are getting firms to participate, but the BOC will definitely look into 

offering more assistance. 

• It was stated that an RFP for professional services is oftentimes less likely to be shown on 

the transit agencies websites versus capital projects and it is more challenging to find out 

https://www.goldengate.org/assets/1/6/consultation_presentation.pdf
https://goldengate.webex.com/recordingservice/sites/goldengate/recording/2328ab639be2103abf7bca6d6344b975/playback
https://goldengate.webex.com/recordingservice/sites/goldengate/recording/2328ab639be2103abf7bca6d6344b975/playback
https://www.norcalptac.org/events/business-outreach-committee-boc-public-participation-meeting
https://www.norcalptac.org/events/business-outreach-committee-boc-public-participation-meeting


ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 30 

December 2024 

who will be a prime when you are trying to get on a team.  It was also stated that there are 

financial burdens in professional services.  The commenter asked if there are trainings 

that can be offered to DBEs to get past some of the professional services challenges for 

developing bids?  Lastly, the commenter stated that there are some agencies that have 

very high goals and many of the agency goals seem low. BOC responded that the BOC 

will offer trainings for professional services and look into what some of the barriers may 

be. The reason that goals may be low is that it depends on what types of contracts are 

included in the projected goal and the availability of DBEs for the contracts. 

• It was stated that the mentoring and protégé program at CalTrans is a great place to 

network with primes and get educational opportunities.  There is also a VTA supply and 

diversity program.  It was advised that DBEs register for these programs.  It was 

suggested that money needs to be set aside at each agency for DBE education programs 

on how to maneuver in the government contracting arena.  Many DBEs do not 

understand how to do estimating and how to get a contract with a prime. 

• It was stated that emerging A&E firms have a difficult time forming relationships with 

primes because teams are formed in advance.  Many primes are hesitant to work with a 

smaller DBE firm. 

• I appreciate all of you setting goals for us DBE's. Very often we would not otherwise 

have an opportunity to participate on these projects. These requirements open the doors 

for us. 

• I encourage all agencies to continue to focus on supportive services to bolster 

tradespersons starting business, residential contractors moving into the public works 

arena, and firms seeking to grow. Working in the public works arena requires a unique 

skill set and we need to continue to support the DBE firms that are working for your 

agencies. 

• Thank you for the opportunity to learn about the process. 

• Focus on your Technical Support Service Program to build DBE Success! 

• Work with the Ethic Chambers and Trade Associations on a Training/Education & 

Development Accelerator Partnering Program. 

• Networking with the Primes is the Key! 

 

Listed below are questions received during registration for the April 11th meeting: 

• How can Diversity/Outreach Inclusion Programs provide the necessary training on 

estimating, bidding, and project management?  This is the help that DBE firms need! 

• How to partner with prime contractor. 

• Upcoming contracts and construction management opportunities. 

• Small business network. 

 

The presentation for the Public Participation Meeting held on April 11, 2022 is located online at  

https://www.goldengate.org/assets/1/6/final_public_participation_meeting_presentation_april_11

_2022.pdf and the recording is located online at: 

https://goldengate.webex.com/recordingservice/sites/goldengate/recording/533db8799bf3103a9c

a9c22ff4ecfe39/playback Password: ppm411 

 

 

https://www.goldengate.org/assets/1/6/final_public_participation_meeting_presentation_april_11_2022.pdf
https://www.goldengate.org/assets/1/6/final_public_participation_meeting_presentation_april_11_2022.pdf
https://goldengate.webex.com/recordingservice/sites/goldengate/recording/533db8799bf3103a9ca9c22ff4ecfe39/playback
https://goldengate.webex.com/recordingservice/sites/goldengate/recording/533db8799bf3103a9ca9c22ff4ecfe39/playback


ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 31 

December 2024 

Public Participation Meeting- April 26, 2022 

37 individuals registered for the Public Participation Meeting on April 26, 2022 and 29 attended, 

including 10 firms/members of the public and 19 BOC members.  

 

Listed below are comments received and addressed at the April 26th meeting: 

• How do you address when goals are not met?  BOC responded that an agency has to do a 

shortfall analysis which details the conditions that prevented the agency from meeting the 

goal and a corrective action plan detailing how the agency will mitigate future shortfalls.  

It was also noted that an agency can ask the Federal Transit Administration to approve a 

singular contract to use race-conscious goals using another agency’s disparity study if 

there are similarities in the contracting opportunities; getting more firms certified as 

DBEs; and encouraging DBEs to attend pre-proposal conferences to network with prime 

contractors can assist in meeting goals. 

• It was stated that many businesses are not government procurement sound and benefit 

from business development programs.  BOC responded that the BOC provides resources 

and workshops to assist the DBE and small business community.  The BOC also partners 

with NorCal PTAC and other businesses such as SCORE to promote the free resources 

available to assist DBEs and small businesses.  Many larger transit agencies also offer 

business development programs. 

• A participant who works with DBEs in the Central Valley stated that he wanted to offer 

similar public participation outreach as the BOC to the Central Valley and was interested 

in attending future BOC outreach events.  The BOC shared a Federal Transit 

Administration YouTube channel and the U.S. Department of Transportation’s “DBE 

Community of Practice Training Sessions” as additional resources. 

 

Listed below is the question received during registration for the April 26th meeting: 

• How do you determine the percentage DBE per project solicitation? When it is below 

10%DBE we have more challenges finding teaming opportunities. 

 

The presentation for the Public Participation Meeting held on April 26, 2022 is located online at  

https://www.goldengate.org/assets/1/6/april_26_public_participation_meeting_presentation2.pdf 

and the recording is located online at: 

https://goldengate.webex.com/recordingservice/sites/goldengate/recording/1327905ea7b0103ab9

ff1aca0dfb00a6/playback  Password: ppm426 

ECCTA received no additional comments on its proposed original DBE triennial goal before or 

after the Consultation or Public Participation Meetings. 

 

https://www.goldengate.org/assets/1/6/april_26_public_participation_meeting_presentation2.pdf
https://goldengate.webex.com/recordingservice/sites/goldengate/recording/1327905ea7b0103ab9ff1aca0dfb00a6/playback
https://goldengate.webex.com/recordingservice/sites/goldengate/recording/1327905ea7b0103ab9ff1aca0dfb00a6/playback


ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

32 

December 2024 

FFY 2023-2025 Original DBE Triennial Goal Board Resolution 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 33 

December 2024 

 
 

 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

34 

December 2024 

Revised DBE Triennial Goal Public Notice English 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 35 

December 2024 

Revised DBE Triennial Goal Public Notice Spanish 

 
 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 36 

December 2024 

Revised DBE Triennial Goal Tri Delta Transit Webpage 

 



ECCTA Revised DBE Triennial Goal FFY 2023-2025 

 37 

December 2024 

FFY 2023-2025 Revised DBE Triennial Goal Board Resolution 

 



TAB 4 
Agenda Item #7b 

ACTION ITEM: 2025 ECCTA Board of Directors Meeting 
Schedule  

Board of Directors Meeting 
Wednesday December 11, 2024 

ECCTA Boardroom 
801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509



Agenda Item #7b 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
December 11, 2024 

Staff Report to ECCTA Board of Directors 
Meeting Date: December 11, 2024 

Agenda Item: 

Lead Staff: 
Approved: 

2025 ECCTA Board of Directors Meeting Schedule - Agenda Item 
#7B 
Rosanna Dominguez, Executive Assistant  
Rashidi Barnes, Chief Executive Officer      

Background 
• The regular meeting date and time of the ECCTA Board of Directors is the 4th

Wednesday of each month at 4:00 p.m.
• The Board Chair has the authority to cancel or reschedule any Tri Delta

Transit Board meeting if there is a lack of pressing agenda items or if
extenuating circumstances exist. As much notice as possible is given so
board members can plan accordingly.

Discussion 
• The 4th Wednesday of each month in 2025:

January 22   

February 26 

March 26  

April 23 

May 28 

June 25 

July 23 

August 27 

September 24 

October 22   

November 26  

December 24  



Agenda Item #7b 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
December 11, 2024 

In the last several years, the Board of Directors combined the November and December 
meetings to avoid the Thanksgiving, Christmas, and New Year holidays. 

Financial Impact 
None 

Requested Action 
Combine the November and December 2025 board meetings and conduct that meeting on 
December 10, 2025. 



TAB 5 
Agenda Item #7c 

ACTION ITEM: Permanent One Seat Ride Program Memorandum of 
Understanding

Board of Directors Meeting 
Wednesday December 11, 2024 

ECCTA Boardroom 
801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509



Agenda Item #7c 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
December 11, 2024 

Staff Report to ECCTA Board of Directors 
Meeting Date: December 11, 2024 

Agenda Item: Permanent One Seat Ride Program Memorandum of 
Understanding – Agenda Item #7C 

Lead Staff: Toan Tran, Chief Operating Officer 

Approved: Rashidi Barnes, Chief Executive Officer 

Background 
On November 1, 2020, ECCTA, LAVTA, County Connection, and WestCAT entered into 
an MOU for a pilot program to provide paratransit trips within Contra Costa County 
and eastern Alameda County that do not require a transfer between transit agencies. 
The pilot program was called One-Seat Ride (OSR). The traditional system required 
passengers who wanted a ride outside of their service area to transfer between 
buses. For example: a passenger who wanted to go to Pinole from Oakley would take 
an ECCTA bus to Concord BART, transfer to a County Connection bus to Martinez, 
where they would transfer to a WestCat bus to finish their trip.  OSR allows ADA 
passengers from any service area to call a single phone number and book a trip from 
one service area to another without having to change buses. The costs for the service 
are split among each agency involved in the trip based on hours and miles associated 
with the trip. The initial pilot program was scheduled to run from December 1, 2020, 
to April 30, 2021. 

The pilot program was extended in April 2021, November 2022, and November 2023 
while the program matured and partner agencies implemented a variety of 
innovations and improvements, including streamlining customer service procedures, 
expanding fare payment options to include County Connection prepaid fare accounts 
and Tri Delta, LAVTA, and WestCAT paratransit tickets, unified data management and 
invoicing algorithms, and procedures for reporting OSR program data to the National 
Transit Database (NTD). 



Agenda Item #7c 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 
December 11, 2024 

 
 
 

 

Discussion 
After an extended pilot phase, the OSR program has proven itself to be enormously 
beneficial for riders as well as operationally advantageous and cost-effective for the 
participating transit agencies when compared to the previous system of coordinated 
inter-operator transfer trips. Customers benefit from shorter and more comfortable 
origin-to-destination rides as well as lower fares, while OSR partner agencies benefit 
from significantly greater predictability and much lower shared per-trip costs. For 
fiscal year 2024-25 to date, the average cost per passenger on OSR is approximately 
$20, whereas the average cost per passenger on the regular paratransit service is 
over $50. 
 
In consultation with the partner agencies and Legal, County Connection has prepared 
a permanent MOU to govern the OSR program going forward. The MOU is based 
largely on the earlier pilot-phase agreements and incorporates significant changes at 
the request of all parties involved. Notable changes from the pilot MOUs include 
clarification of party roles and responsibilities, and new provisions for cost sharing 
and monthly reporting. As before, the operating costs for OSR service will be 
apportioned between the partners based on the actual time and distance traveled in 
each agency’s service area. However, the new MOU also includes partial support for 
County Connection’s overhead costs, which would increase each partner agency’s 
share of the cost, including ECCTA, by about 10%.  Recognizing this additional cost 
was not included in the budget; County Connection has agreed to waive the overhead 
fee for this fiscal year. 
 
Financial Impact 
None.  The cost for the OSR program is included in the FY 2024-25 approved 
budget. 
 
Requested Action 
Approve Resolution #241211C authorizing the CEO to enter into an MOU with County 
Connection, LAVTA, and WestCAT to formalize the One-Seat Ride program. 
 
Attached 

• Draft MOU 
 
 



RESOLUTION #241211C 
PERMANENT ONE SEAT RIDE PROGRAM MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

Resolution #241211C authorizing the CEO to enter into a MOU with Central Contra Costa County 
Transit Authority, LAVTA, and WestCAT to formalize the One-Seat Ride Paratransit program. 

WHEREAS, on August 20, 2020 the Central Contra Costa County Transit Authority’s (County 
Connection) Board of Directors approved a six-month pilot program to provide a one-seat regional ride 
for paratransit passengers wishing to travel across multiple transit agency service areas;  

WHEREAS, the participating agencies included Central Contra Costa County Transit Authority 
(CCCTA), Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority (LAVTA), Western Contra Costa Transit 
Authority (WestCAT), Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority (Tri Delta Transit); 

WHEREAS, the pilot program streamlined regional paratransit ride practices by eliminating 
required transfers for trips that crossed multiple transit service areas, enabling passengers to have a one-
seat ride for the entire duration of their trip;  

WHEREAS, due to the success of the pilot program and the participating agencies need to 
collect and analyze data, the pilot program was extended through November 30, 2024;  

WHEREAS, due to the continued success of the pilot program, ECCTA and the other 
participating agencies wish to implement the One-Seat Regional Ride Program as a permanent program 
and  

WHEREAS, staff requests that the Board of Directors authorize the Chief Executive Officer to 
execute the Memorandum of Understanding with the participating agencies implementing the program.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors authorizes the Chief 
Executive Officer to execute a Memorandum of Understanding implementing the program and to take any 
other actions necessary to implement the program.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 11th day of December 2024, by the following votes: 

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

_____________________________     ________________________________ 

         Diane Burgis, Chair          Rashidi Barnes, Chief Executive Officer 

AYES:  _____  
NOES:  _____ 
ABSENT: _____ 
ABSTENTIONS: _____ 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
REGARDING the 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY & TRI VALLEY 
“ONE-SEAT RIDE” REGIONAL PARATRANSIT PROGRAM 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is entered into as of this 1st day of December 2024 
(Effective Date), by and between the Central Contra Costa Transit Authority, Livermore Amador 
Valley Transit Authority, Western Contra Costa Transit Authority, Eastern Contra Costa Transit 
Authority, referred to individually as “Party” and collectively as “the Parties.” 

RECITALS 

The Central Contra Costa Transit Authority (County Connection) is a joint powers 
authority that provides public bus transit service and complementary paratransit in the 
Central Contra Costa County area. 

The Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority (LAVTA) is a joint powers authority that 
provides public bus service and complementary paratransit in the Tri-Valley area of 
Alameda County. 

The Western Contra Costa Transit Authority (WestCat) is a joint powers authority that 
provides public bus service and complementary paratransit in the Western Contra Costa 
County area. 

The Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority (Tri Delta Transit) is a joint powers authority 
that provides public bus service and complementary paratransit in the Eastern Contra Costa 
County area. 

On November 1, 2020, County Connection, LAVTA, Tri Delta Transit, and WestCat 
entered into an MOU to memorialize the arrangements for administration and coordination 
between the Parties regarding a pilot program to provide one-seat rides to paratransit 
customers traveling between Party jurisdictions, and to share the cost of those trips 
equitably between the Parties. 

The MOU was amended on April 28, 2021, November 30, 2021, November 30, 2022, and 
November 30, 2023, to extend the program through November 30, 2024, and to make other 
necessary revisions. 

The Parties now desire to execute a new MOU for a permanent One-Seat Ride Regional 
Paratransit Program.  

PURPOSE 

This MOU serves to memorialize arrangements for the ongoing administration and 
coordination between the Parties regarding the One-Seat Ride program. 

            Attachment 1



One-Seat Ride MOU 

Page 2 of 6 

21252715.3  

I. SCOPE OF ONE-SEAT RIDE (OSR) PROGRAM: 

The OSR program offers the eligible ADA Paratransit rider traveling between Party 
jurisdictions a single-seat, single-vehicle shared ride from their origin to destination, within 
the Parties’ combined paratransit service areas. Eligible OSR trips must cross at least one 
jurisdictional boundary and may not begin and end within the same Party’s jurisdiction. 

The County Connection LINK paratransit call center will accept, schedule, and dispatch 
all OSR program trip reservations. 

All OSR program trips will be performed under County Connection’s ADA paratransit 
operations and maintenance contract. County Connection’s paratransit subcontractor will 
act as the main provider of OSR trips, and the primary paratransit contractor will provide 
“reverse rescue” service in instances where the subcontractor is unable to provide a 
particular OSR trip, for reasons beyond its control. 

The fare charged for each one-way trip on the OSR program will match the local 
undiscounted ADA paratransit fare for the partner agency having jurisdiction over the 
origin point of the trip. 

The service area for OSR program operations will mirror, to the extent practicable, the 
service area by time of day and day of week within each partner agency’s jurisdiction. 

The on-time pickup window, no-show/cancellation policies, and rider code of conduct for 
the OSR program will match the corresponding rules contained in County Connection’s 
LINK Paratransit Riders' Guide. A copy of the guide is available at: 
https://countyconnection.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/LINK-Riders-Guide-Text-
5.23.pdf.  

II. COUNTY CONNECTION RESPONSIBILITIES: 

County Connection will administer and provide primary oversight for the OSR program. 

County Connection will retain all fares paid in cash or pre-purchased fare credit and will 
deduct the fare value retained from the invoices to the other Parties. 

County Connection will prepare and send individual monthly invoices for each partner 
agency, based on the agreed-upon cost sharing formulas described in Section V. 

County Connection will submit all OSR program operations data to the National Transit 
Database (NTD) using a single S-10 form and will submit OSR program financial data to 
the NTD using form B-30, in coordination with the other Parties. 

III. SHARED & OTHER PARTY RESPONSIBILITIES: 

The Parties will meet regularly to discuss program operations, plans, and any desired 
changes to the program. 

The Parties will cooperate on NTD reporting for the OSR program by submitting 
coordinated NTD B-30 forms to document program costs. 

https://countyconnection.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/LINK-Riders-Guide-Text-5.23.pdf
https://countyconnection.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/LINK-Riders-Guide-Text-5.23.pdf


One-Seat Ride MOU 

Page 3 of 6 

21252715.3  

The Parties will pay County Connection according to the formula described in Section V 
within 30 days after receipt of an invoice.  

The Parties will have the right to audit County Connection’s records to confirm that the 
compensation requested in the invoice is consistent with the services provided.  

The primary contact person for administration of the program for each Party is as follows: 

County Connection: Director of ADA & Specialized Services 
LAVTA: Director of Operations 
WestCat: General Manager 
Tri Delta Transit: Manager of Accessible Services 

IV. MONTHLY REPORTS 

County Connection will report the following individual trip and aggregate program 
operations data monthly to all Parties:  

A) Passenger ID, 
B) Pickup and drop-off dates, times, locations,  
C) Passenger type(s) (registered rider, attendant, companion), 
D) Passenger space type(s) (ambulatory, wheelchair, etc.), 
E) Fare collected and payment method, 
F) Trip distance, 
G) Trip vendor, 
H) Unlinked Passenger Trips by vendor within each partner agency's jurisdiction, 
I) Revenue Hours and Miles by vendor within each partner agency's jurisdiction, 
J) Deadhead Hours and Miles by vendor (where applicable) within each partner 

agency's jurisdiction, 
K) NTD S-10 and B-30 monthly reports, 
L) On-Time percentage, 
M) Validated customer complaints per 1,000 rides. 

V. OSR PROGRAM COST SHARING 

OSR program costs will be shared by all Parties in the following manner: 

Hourly costs will be apportioned between the Parties, based on the total number of OSR 
revenue hours performed within each Party’s service area for each OSR trip during the 
month.  

The cost of fuel for reverse rescue trips will be shared between the Parties, based on the 
actual number of vehicle revenue miles driven within each Party’s service area for reverse 
rescue trips during the month. 

County Connection will charge a 10% administrative fee in addition to the hourly and per-
mile costs described above, to partially offset County Connection’s overhead costs to 



One-Seat Ride MOU 

Page 4 of 6 

21252715.3  

administer the OSR program, and the proportional share attributable to the OSR program 
of the fixed fee paid to County Connection’s paratransit service contractor. 

The monthly invoice for each party will be calculated as shown in the table below. 

Description Qty. Rate Amount 
OSR Revenue Hours 100.00  $    63.83*   $          6,383.00  
Reverse Rescue Fuel Miles 319.83  $  0.8194*   $              262.07  
Admin Cost 10% 

 
 $              664.51  

Fare Credit 
  

 $         (1,000.00) 
Invoice Total 

  
 $           6,309.58  

*NOTE: rates shown for hourly service and fuel miles are those charged for July 2024, 
and are included for demonstration only. The per-mile rate for fuel is recalculated monthly 
by dividing the actual cost paid for fuel by the actual miles driven during the month. 

As of the date of this MOU, expected rates for OSR revenue service hours will be: 

Effective Dates Rate per VRH 
July 1, 2024 – June 30, 2025 $                63.83 
July 1, 2025 – June 30, 2026 $                66.16 
July 1, 2026 – June 30, 2027 $                68.38 

The Parties mutually agree to cooperatively conduct a program evaluation including cost 
sharing within a reasonable amount of time following a request by any Party. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this MOU, the Parties mutually agree to conduct a 
full program evaluation, including program cost sharing and potential funding sources, to 
be completed no later than June 30, 2026. 

VI. MUTUAL HOLD HARMLESS 

Each Party will hold harmless the other Parties, their directors, officers, representatives, 
agents and employees from and against all liability or losses, whether direct or indirect 
(including any and all costs and expenses in connection therewith), incurred by reason of 
negligence or intentional misconduct of the indemnifying Party, its directors, officers, 
representatives, agents and employees in connection with this MOU. 

VII. TERM; WITHDRAWAL; TERMINATION 

The term of this MOU shall commence as of December 1, 2024, and continue until 
terminated by mutual written agreement of the Parties.  

Any Party may withdraw from this MOU with 30 days’ written notice to the other Parties.  

A Party’s participation in the MOU may be terminated for convenience with 30 days' 
written notice by a unanimous decision of the other Parties. 

A defaulting Party's participation in the MOU may be terminated immediately for cause if 
the defaulting Party does not cure the default within 5 business days from written notice of 



One-Seat Ride MOU 

Page 5 of 6 

21252715.3  

default. All amounts due and owing for services provided will be paid to County 
Connection by the withdrawing or terminated Party through the effective date of 
withdrawal or termination. 

VIII. SERVICE AREA ADDITIONS 

Additional service areas may be added to the OSR program following unanimous 
agreement between the Parties and written amendment of this MOU to include the 
designated public transit operators for the added jurisdictions as new Parties to this MOU. 
Upon ratification of any such amendment, the Parties so added will have the same rights 
and responsibilities as the other Parties specified herein. 

IX. MISCELLANEOUS: 

A. Notices.  

All notices and communications deemed by the Parties to be necessary or desirable shall 
be in writing and may be given by email, by personal delivery to a representative of the 
Parties, or by mailing the same postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

If to County Connection: Central Contra Costa Transit Authority 
(dba: County Connection) 
Attn: General Manager 
2477 Arnold Industrial Way 
Concord, CA  94520-5327 

If to LAVTA:  Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority 
Attn:  Executive Director 
1362 Rutan Court, Suite 100 
Livermore, CA 94551 

If to WestCat: Western Contra Costa Transit Authority 
(dba: WestCat) 
Attn:  General Manager 
601 Walter Avenue 
Pinole, CA  94564 

If to Tri Delta Transit: Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 
(dba: Tri Delta Transit) 
Attn:  Chief Executive Officer 
801 Wilbur Ave 
Antioch, CA 94509 

The address to which mailings may be made may be changed from time to time by notice 
mailed as described above. Any notice given by mail shall be deemed given on the day 
after that on which it is deposited in the United States Mail as provided above.  



One-Seat Ride MOU 

Page 6 of 6 

21252715.3  

B. Modification.  

This MOU may be amended or modified only in a writing approved by each of the Parties. 

C. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  

Nothing in this MOU, whether express or implied, is intended to confer any rights or 
remedies on any persons other than the parties to it, nor is anything in this MOU intended 
to relieve or discharge the obligation or liability of any third persons to any Party to this 
MOU. 

D. Attorneys' Fees.  

If any legal proceeding shall be instituted by any of the parties hereto to enforce the terms 
of this MOU or to determine their respective rights or obligations under this MOU, the 
prevailing Party in said proceeding shall recover, in addition to all court costs, reasonable 
attorneys’ fees. 

E. Integration.  

This MOU constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties pertaining to the subject 
matter contained in it and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous oral or written 
agreements, representations, statements, documents, or understandings of the parties. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Memorandum of Understanding 
by their respective duly authorized officers as of the Effective Date. 

 

[add Signature Blocks] 


	5a October 23, 2024 ECCA BOARD MEETING MINUTES.pdf
	CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

	6a Ops Report.pdf
	Overview

	7A Resolution 241211A revised DBE triennial goal FFY 2023-2025.pdf
	EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
	ABSTENTIONS: _____


	7c Resolution OSR MOU.pdf
	EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
	ABSTENTIONS: _____


	7c Attachment 1  OSR MOU.pdf
	RECITALS
	Purpose
	I. Scope of One-Seat Ride (OSR) Program:
	II. County Connection Responsibilities:
	III. Shared & Other Party Responsibilities:
	IV. Monthly Reports
	V. OSR Program Cost Sharing
	VI. Mutual Hold Harmless
	VII. Term; Withdrawal; Termination
	VIII. Service Area Additions
	IX. Miscellaneous:
	A. Notices.
	B. Modification.
	C. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.
	D. Attorneys' Fees.
	E. Integration.





